
 BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, December 9, 2025, at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #14-25, Next Resolution #25-07, Next Agenda Bill #25-060 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll call
3. Agenda Modifications
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations

a. Street Naming Presentation – Philipp Wall
b. Street Naming Presentation – Madden Family
c. 2024 Audit Exit Conference

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign
up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting)

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Mayor’s Report Burkett 

D. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Approve Minutes of June 3, 2025, City Council Study Session
b. Approve Minutes of June 24, 2025, City Council Meeting
c. Approve Minutes of July 1, 2025, City Council Study Session
d. Approve Minutes of September 2, 2025, City Council Study Session
e. Approve Minutes of September 23, 2025, City Council Meeting
f. Claims and Payroll

E. REGULAR AGENDA

1. ORDINANCES
a. ORD No. ___: Adopting the 2026 City Employee Salary Scale
b. ORD No.___: Amending the 2025-2026 City Budget

F. STAFF REPORTS
1. City Administrator Update

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes

H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS & GOOD OF THE ORDER
a. Potential Executive Session (Potential Litigation and Personnel)

I. ADJOURNMENT

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 1



B. PUBLIC COMMENTS

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 2



C. COMMITTEE REPORTS

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 3



D. CONSENT AGENDA

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 4



City Council Study Session – June 3, 2025 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

June 3, 2025 

ATTENDEES: Council members Smith, Arsanto, Bergerson and Anderson (Via Zoom). 

Also, in attendance were: Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Public Services Director Banks, City 
Engineer Miller, Police Records Clerk Burkett, Senior Planner Farnsworth and Deputy Clerk Clark.  

Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Comp Plan Final Review: 
City Administrator Brunell and Senior Planner Farnsworth spoke to the Council regarding the May 27, 
2025, public hearing to review proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments from comments received by 
the Washington State Department of Commerce.  So far, there are four issues that have been reviewed 
by Council based on the feedback.   

· Land Use and planning tools to reduce and mitigate wildfire risk.
· Accommodating growth for emergency housing.
· Identifying areas that have a high risk of residential displacement.
· Including a direct reference to the Racially Disparate Impact report in the Housing element.

Staff recommend reevaluating the adopted Urban High Density and holding an additional public hearing 
specifically focused on this issue.  The Council agreed. 

ADU Code Planning Commission Recommendations: 
Senior Planner Farnsworth updated the Council that over the last several meetings the Planning 
Commission has been discussing ADUs and what makes sense for Buckley to follow the new state law.  
Discussions have included: 

· ADU Design Guidelines
· ADU Building Standards
· ADU Size Requirements
· ADU Utility Standards
· ADUs as Short-Term Rentals
· ADU Setbacks

A memo was included by Mr. Farnsworth in the packet Planning Commission recommendations.  The 
Planning Commission will have the Council review the recommendations and have Council evaluate 
further ADU code. 

6 Year STIP Review: 
City Engineer Miller gave an annual update to the 2026-2031 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 
(STIP).  This year there are 26 projects planned for and the total cost for these projects will total up to 47 
million dollars.  This is not all the projects in the City, there is also a Twenty-Year Transportation Plan that 
we will maintain. City Engineer Miller spoke on options for funding for some of these projects. Council 
members asked questions regarding the projects and especially regarding the roundabouts. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 5



City Council Study Session – June 3, 2025 

New Logo: 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith spoke on the idea of the new logo and the negative posts on social media.  Mayor 
Burkett spoke about why he wants to change the logo and that it is way overdue.  The example 
given to Council in the packet has kept the same concept, just updated.   
Estimated costs would total $13,138.23.  This would include: 

· City Signs
· Parks Signage
· City Vehicles
· Issued Clothing
· Name Tags
· City Flag

Implementation options could include minimal rollout, moderate rollout, and a complete rollout.  Council 
member Anderson said she would like to keep more maroon and gold colors to represent White River 
School District.   

With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:31 PM. 

City Administrator   Mayor 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 6



City Council Minutes – June 24, 2025 

City Council 
June 24, 2025 

Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 

Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Anderson (Via Zoom), 
Bergerson, Arsanto, Green and Burbank 

Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Director of Parks and Recreation 
Snodgrass, Public Services Director Banks, Senior Planner Farnsworth and Deputy Clerk 
Clark. 

Council member Arsanto moved to excuse Council member Bender.  Council member 
Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  

Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to 
the agenda. 

Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 

CITIZEN PARTICIPATION 

Sandra Anderson – Ms. Anderson stated that in May she gave the Council a senate bill 
regarding pollinators and beehives.  Ms. Anderson is asking the Council to change the 
Buckley Municipal Code regarding this and the location of beehives to property lines. 

Donna Garland – Ms. Garland from the Buckley Foodbank updated that from Feb. – May 
the Foodbank has served 5,051 people.  Please continue to donate if you can. 

COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee 
Council member Smith shared that the Admin/Finance/Public Safety Committee met 
and they discussed: 

· Civil Service Lists to Hire New Police Officers
· Fire Dept. has an Updated Seal and Mascot
· Talked about BMC Code for Fireworks

CONSENT AGENDA 

Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Bergerson seconded the motion. Motion carried. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 7



City Council Minutes – June 24, 2025 

Approve Minutes of January 7, 2025, City Council Study Session 

REGULAR AGENDA 

PUBLIC HEARING: COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith convened the Public Hearing at 6:10 PM.  

Josh Hosford – Mr. Hosford spoke on that he submitted a detailed letter to the Council 
that is related to properties that front Mundy Loss Road and the retention pond on the 
corner of 410 and Mundy Loss and spoke on a few parcels and the zoning regarding 
these parcels.  

Upon no further testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Smith closed the Public Hearing and 
reconvened the Council meeting at 6:14 PM. 

PUBLIC HEARING: 2026-2031 SIX-YEAR TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PLAN 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith convened the Public Hearing at 6:15 PM. 

Upon no testimony, Mayor Pro Tem Smith closed the Public Hearing and reconvened 
the Council meeting at 6:16 PM.  

RES NO. 25-04: Adopting the 2026-2031 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Resolution No. 25-04 Adopting the 2026-
2031 Six-Year Transportation Improvement Plan. Council member Bergerson seconded 
the motion.  Motion carried. 

Consultant Services Agreement – Todd Davis, M.D. 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the Consultant Agreement between the 
City of Buckley and Todd Davis, M.D as Advising Physician for the Buckley Fire 
Department.  Council member Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried.  

STAFF REPORTS 

Parks & Recreation 
Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass updated on the last 6 months in the Parks 
Dept., Senior Center and Youth Center.  The new trailhead with the bathrooms is going 
smoothly.   

The Senior Center cannot operate without volunteers for such things as helping with 
food and driving the van.   At the Youth Center Ms. Snodgrass let everyone know how 
many kids they have had since the beginning of the year and that the last day of school 
at Youth Center went really well.   
In the packet is a flyer with upcoming events such as: 

· Tunes by the Trail

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 8



City Council Minutes – June 24, 2025 

· National Night Out
· Ribbon Cutting at the Doc Tait Pavilion
· Community Cinema
· Beautify Buckley

City Administrator Brunell introduced Pierce County Council Member Dave Morrell.  She 
also let the Council know that Mayor Burkett, Police Chief Alfano and Fire Chief Skogen 
are in Vancouver, WA for a Lahar/ Volcano Training. 

Council Member Comments & Good of the Order: 

Council Member Arsanto wanted to say that when he came through town the parks and 
everything looked nice, all freshly mowed.  

Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 

With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:27 PM. 

Mayor City Administrator 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 9



 

City Council Study Session –July 1, 2025 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

July 1, 2025 
 
ATTENDEES: Council members Green, Smith, Arsanto, Burbank, Anderson and Bergerson. 
 
Also, in attendance were: Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell and Deputy Clerk Clark. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM 
 
Pump Track: 
City Administrator Brunell introduced Jalen Johansen to speak and reminded the Council that the pump 
track concept was last discussed at the Council Study Session on Dec. 3, 2024.  The pump track would be 
located between Jefferson Ave. and the Veteran’s Memorial.  Mr. Johansen has started a new non-profit 
Pedals for the People, along with the City they have all come up with a draft agreement for Council to 
consider.  Ms. Brunell spoke on the donation and construction agreement, Pedals for the People 
responsibilities and the City’s commitments.   
 
Mr. Johansen updated Council on the current fundraising for the pump track, and the first event will be 
November 22, 2025, at the Buckley Eagles and hoping to raise enough money from this event to get 
started on design and engineering.   
 
Council member Burbank asked about the maintenance commitment from the City, and Ms. Brunell 
confirmed it will come out of the Parks Department budget which is based out of the general fund. Ms. 
Burbank also asked if there would be lighting and Mr. Johansen answered that this is something that will 
be figured out during permitting but would assume they would need lighting.  
 
Council member Green asked what the estimated maintenance cost annually would be and Mr. Johansen 
stated that the costs wouldn’t be anymore than they currently are and could possibly be less because 
most of it will be asphalt and it would just be mowing around the asphalt.  
 
Council member Bergerson asked questions about location, and she would prefer to see other options for 
the location.  Ms. Brunell and Mr. Johansen shared their opinions on why this location works the best.  
 
This will be brought forward at a later Council meeting for vote. 
 
Food Bank Agreement Review: 
City Administrator Brunell shared with Council the proposed agreement for Buckley Foodbank that has 
been located in Buckley Hall for nearly 40 years without a formal agreement for occupying the Buckley 
Hall.  This has created challenges in managing building operations, maintenance, and long-term planning. 
Right now, the City’s General Fund, which also supports police, planning, parks and administrative 
services, is currently used to fully subsidize the Food Bank’s facility use.  Staff has presented Council with 
and estimated monthly cost to operate Buckley Hall and a percentage for Councils consideration for 
Foodbank to pitch in.  The draft included in the packet includes different options the Council could 
consider moving forward with the agreement.   
 
Mel and Donna Garland from the Buckley Foodbank addressed Council and their concerns with being 
charged for the space in Buckley Hall.  The Buckley Foodbank is ran all volunteers and has been worried 
about applying for grants as the Foodbank is not able to apply for a grant writer and the amount of 
donations received is not enough to pay for the space in Buckley Hall. Mr. Garland broke down the costs 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025
 

10



City Council Study Session –July 1, 2025 

of running the Foodbank.  Mr. and Mrs. Garland raised concerns about the maintenance at Buckley Hall 
and gave an example that the flooring is coming up.  

Council gave their opinions on what they thought would be fair and fully stand behind the City continuing 
to subsidize the Foodbank. 

Logo Review: 
City Administrator Brunell shared the memo to Council regarding the logo redesign that was under the 
direction of Mayor Burkett with a simplified and more modern logo that reflects Buckley today.   
Staff and Council discussed the logo options and the implementation options for the rollout of the new 
logo and the costs associated with that.  Ms. Brunell explained that the cost will come from the utility 
department and general funds.   
Council all agreed with a moderate rollout and that option C was the best option for the new logo design.  
Council will consider formal adoption of the new logo at an upcoming Council meeting. 

City Council Comments: 
Council member Smith spoke about the Buckley Log Show and what a great attendance there was, and it 
seemed like a bigger turnout than in past years. 

City Administrator Brunell spoke about the delay of the ribbon cutting at the updated Buckley City Hall 
and the ribbon cutting next week is to be decided depending on when the handrails get delivered and 
installed.  

With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:22 PM. 

City Administrator   Mayor 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 11



 

City Council Study Session –September 2, 2025 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 

September 2, 2025 
 
ATTENDEES: Council members Green, Bender, Smith, Arsanto, Anderson (Via Zoom) and Bergerson. 
 
Also, in attendance were: Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Public Services Director Banks, Senior 
Planner Farnsworth, Police Records Clerk Burkett, City Clerk Zumek (Via Zoom) and Deputy Clerk Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Pump Track Donation: 
This item last came before Council on July 1, 2025, with the draft donation and construction agreement.  
The City Attorney has reviewed the final version of the agreement between the City of Buckley, Jalen 
Johansen and the non-profit Pedals for the People.   
 
Council member Bergerson would like to see another location by Miller Park or Elk Heights Park and not 
located next to the Veterans Memorial and Jefferson Street.  Mr. Johansen explained cars will be driving 
down Highway 410 and will be able to see it and stop and hopefully also bring traffic to the businesses.  
That is why this location was selected.  Council member Green added that he likes the location that has 
been chosen.  Council member Smith and Mayor Burkett both agreed with the chosen location and are 
thankful for this donation.   
 
Council member Bender asked about the upkeep of the pump track, Mr. Johansen and City Administrator 
Brunell explained it will be done through our Parks Dept. and that it will be the same amount of upkeep.  
 
Council member Anderson agreed she also likes the chosen location.  Council would like to bring this 
forward to next week’s Council meeting to vote on.  
 
Administrative Policies & Procedures: 
City Clerk Zumek explained that in 2023, the City started revising and updating its Administrative and 
Personnel Policies and Procedures.  This came about because of policies we didn’t have or minor updates 
on existing policies.  This can be brought forward at a later time so Council can have time to review it over 
the next couple of weeks.  Ms. Zumek added that if Council has any questions, they can contact her at any 
time.  Most of the policies have been reformatted to make it easier for the City to amend just one policy 
at a time.   
 
Council asked questions regarding the minor changes and agreed they would like time to review this 
further.  
 
Development Code Updates: 
Sarah Lutkin from Frameworks Consulting spoke to Council that several months ago Council reviewed the 
development code updates regarding ADUs and no changes have been made to this code.  Other items 
that need to be discussed are: 

· STEP housing definitions 
· Existing and new use table 
· Residential Dimensions  
· Urban High-Density Workshop 
· Middle-Housing Preference Survey 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025
 

12



City Council Study Session –September 2, 2025 

Council discussed each topic and Senior Planner Farnsworth answered their questions.  Council discussed 
storage units, and grandfathering in the ones that are here, but trying to not allow any others.  

Ms. Lutkin updated Council on what the opinion of the Planning Commission was and what they discussed 
on each topic.  

City Council Comments: 
Council member Green thought that this was a productive Study Session. 

Mayor Burkett updated that WSDOT had a meeting today with Pierce County and there are still no updates 
on the White River Bridge and when it will reopen.  

With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:40 PM. 

City Administrator   Mayor 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 13



 

City Council Minutes –September 23, 2025 1 
  
 

City Council 
September 23, 2025 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present: Smith, Bergerson, Anderson (Via 
Zoom), Arsanto, Green, and Burbank. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell (Via Zoom), Police Chief Alfano, Public 
Services Director Banks, Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass, Senior Planner 
Farnsworth, Police Records Clerk Burkett, Mayor Burkett (Via Zoom) and Deputy Clerk 
Clark. 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council member Bender.  Council member 
Arsanto seconded the motion.  
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
ORD NO.  08 -25: Amending BMC 3.50.040 Park Impact Fees 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Ord. No. 08-25: Amending BMC 3.50.040 
Park Impact Fees. Council member Green seconded the motion.  Upon roll call vote, 
motion carried 6/0.  
   
RCO Grant Agreement – Courts at Miller Park 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve the RCO Grant Agreement for Funding the 
Courts at Miller Park. Council member Green seconded the motion. Motion carried.  
 
Transit Service Financial Partnership Agreement Between the City of Buckley and 
Pierce Transit 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve Transit Service Financial Partnership 
Agreement Between the City of Buckley and Pierce Transit. Council member Green 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
MOU Buckley Police Guild 2026 CBA Rollover 
Council member Arsanto moved to Approve MOU Buckley Police Guild 2026 CBA 
Rollover. Council member Burbank seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025
 

14



City Council Minutes –September 23, 2025 2 

Administrator Banks Employment Contract – 2025 Draft 
Council member Burbank moved to Approve Administrator Banks Employment 
Contract – 2025 Draft. Council member Bergerson seconded the motion.  Motion 
carried. 

STAFF REPORTS 

Development Code Updates 
Senior Planner shared that Frameworks Consulting was at the meeting if Council had 
any questions and that this was the code updates that was presented to Council at a 
prior Study Session. 

Council member Bergerson stated she would like to discuss this further at another Study 
Session regarding one of the updates.  

City Administrator Update 
City Administrator Brunell deferred to the new Interim City Administrator Banks.  Mr. 
Banks wanted to thank Ms. Brunell, City Council and Mayor Burkett for this opportunity. 

Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
Council member Bergerson wanted to thank Mr. Banks for stepping up as Interim City 
Administrator and added the City is lucky to have him. 

Council member Burbank asked about closing River Ave. by Dieringer for parking and 
Ms. Brunell said that we haven’t been updated yet on the transit route.  Mayor Burkett 
added that he has talked to Mr. Banks about striping. 

Council member Smith spoke about Glacier Middle School and parents turning left off C 
Street and Main Street during kid drop off and pick up.   
Council member Arsanto mentioned that the speed watch sign that was on Park Ave. is 
not there anymore.  

Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Green seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 

With nothing further the meeting was adjourned at 6:35 PM. 

Mayor  City Administrator 

Prepared by: Jessica Clark, Deputy Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 15



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025
 

16



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 17



D. REGULAR AGENDA

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 18



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025
 

19



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 20



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 21



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 22



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 23



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 24



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 25



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 26



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 27



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 28



City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 29



C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ag
en

da
 P

ac
ke

t -
 1

2/
9/

20
25

30



C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ag
en

da
 P

ac
ke

t -
 1

2/
9/

20
25

31



C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il 

Ag
en

da
 P

ac
ke

t -
 1

2/
9/

20
25

32



E. STAFF REPORTS

City Council Agenda Packet - 12/9/2025 33


	City Council Agenda - 12.09.2025
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	City Council Study Session Minutes 06-03-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 06-24-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Study Session Minutes 07-01-2025 (Draft)
	City Council Study Session Minutes 09-02-20025 (Draft)
	City Council Minutes 09-23-2025 (Draft)
	Claims and Payroll
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Regular Agenda Item 1 (Adopting 2026 City Employee Salary Scales)
	Regular Agenda Item 2 (Amending 2025-2026 City Budget)
	F. STAFF REPORTS



